
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

      BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  
MMeeeettiinngg  

AApprriill  44,,  22002222  
  



 
March 31, 2022  6:18:44 PM 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
APRIL 4, 2022 

COMMISSIONERS’ CONFERENCE ROOM & LIVESTREAMED ON FACEBOOK 
116 ADAMS STREET, PLYMOUTH, NC 

 
 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Johnson 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
 
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Approval of Minutes for March 7, 2022 Regular Meeting  
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
c) Proclamation 2022-009 National County Government Month 
d) Resolution 2022-010 Terminating Reintroduction of the Red Wolf 
e) Resolution 2022-011 Requesting the NC Dept. of Commerce, NC Works Commission to 

Retain Boundaries for the Northeastern Local Workforce Development Area 
f) Resolution 2022-012 Authorizing Sale of Real Property, SR 1126/SR1164, By Electronic 

Public Auction Pursuant to GS 160A 
g) FY22 Audit Contract 

 
Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
 
Item 3   6:20 PM  Public Hearing:  Solar Ordinance Amendment, Mr. Allen Pittman, Planning Director 
    
Item 4 6:30 PM Trillium’s Annual Report, Mr. Dave Peterson, Senior Regional Director 
 
Item 5 6:50 PM  Travel & Tourism Authority State of the Union, Mr. Tom Harrison, TTA Director 
 
Item 6 7:10 PM Southern Albemarle Association (SAA) Transportation Needs, Ms. Paulique Horton, 

Washington County Vice-President, SSA 
 
Item 7 7:20 PM NCDOT Update, Ms. Gretchen Byrum, Mr. Win Bridgers and Mr. Ronnie Sawyer, NCDOT 
 
Item 8 7:40 PM Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
Item 9 7:50 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy Dixon,  
   Finance Officer 
  
Item 10 8:10 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
Item 11 8:20 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  (attorney-client 

privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 
      

Adjourn 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  April 4, 2022 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, 
to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 
 

a) Approval of Minutes for March 7, 2022 Regular Meeting 
See attachment at the end of the package. 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
See attachment. 

c) Proclamation 2022-009 National County Government Month 
See attachment. 

d) Resolution 2022-010 Terminating Reintroduction of the Red Wolf 
See attachment. 

e) Resolution 2022-011 Requesting the NC Dept. of Commerce, NC Works 
Commission to Retain Boundaries for the Northeastern Local Workforce 
Development Area 
See attachment. 

f)    Resolution 2022-012 Authorizing Sale of Real Property, SR 1126/SR1164, By 
Electronic Public Auction Pursuant to GS 160A 
See attachment. 

g) FY22 Audit Contract 
See attachment. 
Also, for reference: 

 
 FY21 Audit Contract FY22 Audit Contract 
Audit Fee 42,500 45,250 
Financial Statement Fee 3,500 3,000 
TTA Audit Fee 3,750 3,750 
TTA Statement Fee 500 500 
Total 50,250 52,500 
 

Staff recommendation is to approve the contract.  The TTA will approve its 
portion at their next meeting in April. 









Washington County Proclamation 2022-009  Page 1 of 1 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

PROCLAMATION 2022-009 
NATIONAL COUNTY GOVERNMENT MONTH - APRIL 2022 

 
"COUNTIES THRIVE" 

 
WHEREAS, the nation’s 3,069 counties, parishes and boroughs serving more than 315 million 

Americans provide essential services to create healthy, safe and vibrant communities; and  

WHEREAS, counties provide public health services, administer justice, keep communities safe, foster 
economic opportunities and much more; and 

WHEREAS, Washington County and all counties take pride in our responsibility to protect and 
enhance the health, wellbeing and safety of our residents in efficient and cost-effective ways; and 

WHEREAS, under the leadership of National Association of Counties President Larry Johnson, NACo 
is demonstrating how “Counties THRIVE,” especially in supporting residents and businesses during the 
coronavirus pandemic; and  

WHEREAS, each year since 1991 the National Association of Counties has encouraged counties 
across the country to elevate awareness of county responsibilities, programs and services; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Washington County Board of County 
Commissioners do hereby proclaim April 2022 as National County Government Month and encourage all 
county officials, employees, schools and residents to participate in county government celebration activities. 

 
 

ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___ 
 

 

       __________________________________________ 
       Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 

       Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR.,  

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2022-010  Page 1 of 3 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

RESOLUTION 2022-010 
RESOLUTION REQUESTING THAT THE UNITED STATES FISH AND 

WILDLIFE SERVICE DECLARE THE RED WOLF (CANIS RUFUS) EXTINCT IN 
THE WILD, TERMINATE THE RED WOLF REINTRODUCTION PROGRAM IN 
BEAUFORT, DARE, HYDE, TYRRELL, AND WASHINGTON COUNTIES AND 
REMOVE ALL RADIO COLLARED WOLVES FROM THE RED WOLF (CANIS 

RUFUS) NON-ESSENTIAL EXPERIMENTAL POPULATION AREA 
 

WHEREAS, the purposes of the Endangered Species Act (ESA) are “to provide a means 
whereby the ecosystems upon which endangered species and threatened species depend may be 
conserved [and] to provide a program for the conservation of such endangered species and 
threatened species”, and; 
 

WHEREAS, these species of fish, wildlife, and plants conserved under the ESA are to be 
of “esthetic, ecological, educational, historical, recreational, and scientific value to the Nation and 
its people”, and; 
 

WHEREAS, red wolves (Canis rufus) were listed as endangered in 1967 by the United States 
Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) under the Endangered Species Preservation Act of 1966 
resulting in initiation of intensive recovery efforts, and; 
 

WHEREAS, red wolves were believed by the USFWS to be extinct in the wild by 1980, 
and; 
 

WHEREAS, red wolves produced in captivity from 14 founders originating from 400 wild 
canids captured from 1973 through 1980 were first released onto the Albemarle Peninsula in the 
Alligator River National Wildlife Refuge (ARNWR) in 1987, and; 
 

WHEREAS, USFWS designated red wolves on federal lands in the ARNWR and Dare 
County Bombing Range as a non-essential experimental population, expanding that designation 
to include Pocosin Lakes National Wildlife Refuge in 1995, a cumulative total of 310,000 acres, 
and; 
 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR.,  

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2022-010  Page 2 of 3 
 

WHEREAS, the red wolf recovery area, as currently designated, includes Beaufort, Dare, 
Hyde, Tyrrell, and Washington counties, and; 
 

WHEREAS, a majority of the lands in those counties are held in private ownership, and; 
 

WHEREAS, the red wolf recovery program is predicated upon the USFWS’s stated goal in 
1986, 1991, and 1995 rules for establishing a self-sustaining population managed on federal lands, 
and under 10(j) rules minimizing negative impacts of red wolves on private lands, and; 
 

WHEREAS, since initiation of the restoration project active management of habitats to 
benefit red wolves on federal lands has been minimal, resulting in predominate use of private 
lands by wolves to meet annual life requisites, a scenario inconsistent with stated USFWS goals, 
and; 
 

WHEREAS, the USFWS has further encouraged the predominate use of private lands for 
wolves by creating and promoting a program called “Prey for the Pack” which provides both 
technical and financial support to private landowners for habitat improvement projects specifically 
to promote habitat for red wolf prey species and in exchange for this support, landowners will 
allow red wolves on their private lands un-harassed, and; 
 

WHEREAS, the predominate use of private lands by red wolves continues to increasingly 
impact land-use options for landowners, as well as increasing the potential for wolf and human 
interactions, and; 
 

WHEREAS, the USFWS has been unable to fulfill its obligations under federal rules to 
resolve these conflicts, and; 
 

WHEREAS, coyote distribution and density has continued to increase across the recovery 
area, resulting in increased hybridization and introgression among red wolves and coyotes, and; 
 

WHEREAS, the purity of the red wolf genome is questionable and has been debated since 
the initiation of restoration efforts, and; 
 

WHEREAS, increases in coyote populations combined with coyote/red wolf hybridization 
and introgression has eliminated a taxonomically unique red wolf, and; 
 

WHEREAS, there is a concern, based on reports from individuals coming into contact with 
coyote/red wolf hybrids, that these hybrids exhibit more aggressive behavior toward humans than 
coyotes or radio collared red wolves, and; 
 

WHEREAS, on October 14, 2014, the USFWS released an independent review and 
evaluation report by the Wildlife Management Institute titled:  A Comprehensive Review and 
Evaluation of the Red Wolf (Canis rufus) Recovery Program, and; 
 

WHEREAS, the programmatic review included conclusions that the “dominate ecological 
challenge to red wolf recovery is hybridization with coyotes” and “[g]iven that coyotes now fully 
occupy former red wolf range, it is unclear whether red wolves can be successfully reintroduced 
and rear non-hybridized young without active human intervention”, and; 
 

WHEREAS, USFWS summary of releases data show that in 2012 the red wolf population 
estimate was at its peak of 100-120, with 17-20% number of mortalities as a function of population 



Washington County Resolution 2022-010  Page 3 of 3 
 

and it has steadily decreased with 2021 data showing a population estimate of 17-20 with 30-
35% number of mortalities as a function of population, and; 
 

WHEREAS, on January 29, 2015, the North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 
passed a resolution, which is attached for reference and to date has not been rescinded by the 
Commission, that requests the USFWS, among other requests, declare the red wolf extinct in the 
wild in North Carolina and terminate the Red Wolf Reintroduction Program for free-ranging red 
wolves in North Carolina. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that because red wolf restoration is no longer 
consistent with the goals of the ESA, because current and future conditions make restoration and 
management of a self-sustaining population of red wolves on federal lands both taxonomically 
and operationally impossible, and because of concerns related to more aggressive behavior of 
coyote/red wolf hybrids, the Washington County Board of Commissioners hereby requests that the 
USFWS: 
 

• declare in federal rules that the red wolf is extinct in the wild in North Carolina, 
• terminate the Red Wolf Reintroduction Program for free-ranging red wolves in North 

Carolina, 
• repeal all federal rules describing, delineating, and designating conditions for red wolf 

restoration in North Carolina, 
• designate all wild canids other than foxes on the Albemarle Peninsula as coyotes or coyote-

hybrids, 
• designate that no federal-trust canids exist on the Albemarle Peninsula, 
• designate that all wild canids on the Albemarle Peninsula are state-trust resources under 

the jurisdiction of the North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission, and 
• remove all existing radio collared wolves from the Red Wolf (Canis rufus) Non-Essential 

Experimental Population Area. 
 

 
ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___ 
 

 

              
      __________________________________________ 

               Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 
          Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 



Washington County Proclamation 2022-011  Page 1 of 2 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

RESOLUTION 2022-011 
WASHINGTON COUNTY 

 RESOLUTION ON STATEWIDE WORKFORCE BOARD REALIGNMENT 
 

A resolution of Washington County formally requesting the North Carolina 
Department of Commerce, NC Works Commission, retain the boundaries of the 
Northeastern Local Workforce Development Area in its final recommendations for 
statewide realignment or consolidation of Local Workforce Development Areas 
(LWDAs) or Local Workforce Development Boards (LWDBs).  The Northeastern 
Local Workforce Development Area (NLWDA) includes Camden, Chowan, Currituck, 
Dare, Gates, Hyde, Pasquotank, Perquimans, Tyrrell, and Washington Counties.  
The Northeastern Workforce Development Consortium does not support any final 
recommendation that separates these ten counties, merges them into larger areas, 
or consolidates other LWDAs into the Northeastern (NLWDA).  

 
WHEREAS, the Northeastern Local Workforce Development Area (NLWDA) is the 

designated planning and administrative area to receive funds from the Workforce Innovation and 
Opportunity Act (WIOA) for Camden, Chowan, Currituck, Dare, Gates, Hyde, Pasquotank, 
Perquimans, Tyrrell, and Washington Counties; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Northeastern Workforce Development Consortium are the designated 
recipients of WIOA funds for the Northeastern Local Workforce Development Area, and charged 
with the oversight and implementation of WIOA programs and activities within the Northeastern 
Local Workforce Development Area (NLWDA); and 
  

WHEREAS, the Northeastern Workforce Development Consortium appoint the members of 
the Northeastern Workforce Development Board (NWDB), and select the Northeastern Local 
Workforce Development Area (NLWDA) Fiscal Agent and Administrative Entity for the area; and 
 

WHEREAS, Northeastern Workforce Development Consortium support local and regional 
workforce solutions to address common issues or opportunities, coordinate state and federal 
program service delivery in the Northeastern Workforce Development Area (NLWDA), and build 
strategic partnerships to improve the prosperity of the ten counties within the consortium; and   
 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR.,  

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Washington County Proclamation 2022-011  Page 2 of 2 
 

WHEREAS, the Northeastern Local Workforce Development Area (NLWDA) was designated 
by the North Carolina Division of Workforce Solutions (NCDWS) based on factors such as common 
community growth patterns, shared labor pools, commuting patterns, coordinated economic 
development strategies, regional alignment with state and federal programs and services, and 
empowered to carry out programs and services that are of mutual interests to member 
governments within the Northeastern Local Workforce Development Area (NLWDA); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Albemarle Commission Council of Governments (ACCOG) serves as the 
fiscal agent and/or administrative entity for WIOA programs; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Albemarle Commission Council of Governments (ACCOG) serves as the 
designated Economic Development District (EDD) through the U.S. Department of Commerce: 
Economic Development Administration (EDA); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Northeastern Workforce Development Consortium, the Northeastern 
Workforce Development Board (NWDB), and the Albemarle Commission Council of Governments 
(ACPCOG) work together to align the Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) 
to improve the Northeastern Local Workforce Development Area’s (NLWDA) workforce 
infrastructure, and to provide a skilled workforce for area job seekers and employers, 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Northeastern Workforce Development 
Consortium formally requests to retain its current designation, geographic boundary, and appointed 
entities to carry out WIOA programs and activities, and that we do not support any final 
recommendation that separates these ten counties, merges them into larger areas, or consolidates 
other LWDAs into the Northeastern Local Workforce Development Area (NLWDA). 

 
 

ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___ 
 

 

              
      __________________________________________ 

               Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 
          Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 



Washington County Resolution 2022-012  Page 1 of 4 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

RESOLUTION 2022-012 
 

AUTHORIZING SALE OF REAL PROPERTY, SR 1126/ SR 1164,  
BY ELECTRONIC PUBLIC AUCTION  

PURSUANT TO G.S. 160 A-270 
 

WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-270 authorizes the Board of County Commissioners of Washington 
County to sell real property at public auction, including electronic public auction, upon adoption 
of a resolution authorizing the appropriate official to dispose of the property at public auction 
subject to the Board’s acceptance of the highest bid; and 
  

WHEREAS, the County Manager has recommended that the property, described below, 
should be sold as public auction as surplus property; and 

1. SR 1126/ SR 1164, NC; Tax Pin #7766.00-29-4901; Deed Book 522, Page 531-532;  
2. GIS MAP (see Attachment A) 
3. Approximate estimated tax value and back taxes owed to the County : $4,905.69 (See 

Attachment B) 

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of County Commissioner of Washington County hereby 
resolves as follows: 

 
1. The County Manager or their designee is authorized to sell by electronic auction at 

www.govdeals.com the surplus property described above; advertising from April 5 – 
May 8, 2022 and bidding May 9 – June 2, 2022; following approval of this 
resolution. 

2. Electronic advertisements of the sale of real property, described above, shall be 
posted at least 30 calendar days prior to the date on which bidding for the property 
opens. 

3. Electronic advertisements shall be posted on the Washington County website and, 
where feasible, by other electronic means through which notice of the electronic 
auction may be broadly advertised.  

4. Electronic advertisements shall identify and provide a general description of the 
property to be sold, the date and time at which electronic bidding opens, the 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR.,  

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 

http://www.govdeals.com/


Washington County Resolution 2022-012  Page 2 of 4 
 

electronic address where information about the property to be sold can be found, a 
reference to the resolution authorizing the sale, and any other relevant terms and 
conditions of sale. 

5. After conclusion of the bid process, the results shall be reported to the Board at their 
next regularly scheduled meeting, and the Board shall accept or reject the bid within 
30 days of said report. 
 
 

ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___ 
 

 

       __________________________________________ 
       Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 

       Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2022-012  Page 3 of 4 
 

 
ATTACHMENT A 

 

 
 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2022-012  Page 4 of 4 
 

 
ATTACHMENT B: 

 
 
 

 
 



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /2  

The 

of 

and 

and 

for 

Primary Government Unit, together with DPCU (if applicable), hereinafter referred to as Governmental Unit(s) 

Auditor Name 

Auditor Address 

Hereinafter referred to as Auditor 

hereby agree as follows: 

Must be within four months of FYE 

The Auditor shall audit all statements and disclosures required by U.S. generally accepted auditing
standards (GAAS) and additional required legal statements and disclosures of all funds and/or divisions of the
Governmental Unit(s). The non-major combining, and individual fund statements and schedules shall be
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and an opinion shall
be rendered in relation to (as applicable) the governmental activities, the business- type activities, the
aggregate DPCUs, each major governmental and enterprise fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information (non-major government and enterprise funds, the internal service fund type, and the fiduciary fund
types).

At a minimum, the Auditor shall conduct audit and render report in accordance with GAAS. The 
Auditor shall perform the audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards if 

. 
Uniform

Administration Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)
the State Single Audit Implementation Act  This audit and all associated audit documentation may be subject 

to review by Federal and State agencies in accordance with Federal and State laws, including the staffs of the 
Office of State Auditor (OSA) and the Local Government Commission (LGC). If the audit requires a federal 
single audit  the Uniform Guidance (§200.501), it is recommended that the Auditor and 
Governmental Unit(s) jointly agree, in advance of the execution of this contract, which party is responsible for 
submission of the audit and the accompanying data collection form to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse as
required under the Uniform Guidance (§200.512).

If the audit and Auditor communication are found in this review to be substandard, the results of the review 
may be forwarded to the North Carolina State Board of CPA Examiners (NC State Board). 

Page 1 

Governing Board 

Primary Government Unit

Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) (if applicable) 

Fiscal Year Ending  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

WASHINGTON COUNTY

WASHINGTON COUNTY TRAVEL & TOURISM AUTHORITY

THOMPSON, PRICE, SCOTT, ADAMS & CO, P.A.

1626 S MADISON STREET WHITEVILLE, NC 28472

06/30/22 10/31/22



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

If an entity is determined to be a component of another government as defined by the group audit
standards, the entity’s auditor shall make a good faith effort to comply in a timely manner with the requests of
the group auditor in accordance with AU-6 §600.41 - §600.42.

This contract contemplates an unmodified opinion being rendered. If during the process of conducting
the audit, the Auditor determines that it will not be possible to render an unmodified opinion on the financial
statements of the unit, the Auditor shall contact the LGC taff to discuss the circumstances leading to that
conclusion as soon as is practical and before the final report is issued. The audit shall include such tests of the
accounting records and such other auditing procedures as are considered by the Auditor to be necessary in the
circumstances. Any limitations or restrictions in scope which would lead to a qualification should be fully
explained in an attachment to this contract.

If this audit engagement is subject to the standards for audit as defined in Government Auditing
Standards, 201  revision, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, then by accepting this
engagement, the Auditor warrants that he/she has met the requirements for a peer review and continuing
education as specified in Government Auditing Standards. The Auditor agrees to provide a copy of the most
recent peer review report to the Governmental Unit(s) and the Secretary of the LGC prior to the execution of an
audit contract. Subsequent submissions of the report are required only upon report expiration or upon auditor’s
receipt of an updated peer review report. If the audit firm received a peer review rating other than pass, the
Auditor shall not contract with the Governmental Unit(s) without first contacting the Secretary of the LGC for a
peer review analysis that may result in additional contractual requirements.

If the audit engagement is not subject to Government Accounting Standards or if financial statements are not 
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and fail to include all 
disclosures required by GAAP, the Auditor shall provide an explanation as to why in an attachment to this 
contract or in an amendment. 

It is agreed that time is of the essence in this contract. All audits are to be performed and the report of
audit submitted to LGC aff within four months of fiscal year end. If it becomes necessary to amend th

, an amended contract along with a written 
explanation of the  shall be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for approval.

It is agreed that GAAS include a review of the Governmental Unit’s (Units’) systems of internal control
and accounting as same relate to accountability of funds and adherence to budget and law requirements
applicable thereto; that the Auditor shall make a written report, which may or may not be a part of the written
report of audit, to the Governing Board setting forth his/her findings, together with his recommendations for
improvement. That written report shall include all matters defined as “significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses” in AU-C 265 of the AICPA Professional Standards (Clarified). The Auditor shall file a copy of that
report with the Secretary of the LGC.

All local government and public authority contracts for audit or audit-related work require the approval of
the Secretary of the LGC. This includes annual or special audits, agreed upon procedures related to internal
controls, bookkeeping or other assistance necessary to prepare the Governmental Unit’s (Units’) records for
audit, financial statement preparation, any finance-related investigations, or any other audit- related work in the
State of North Carolina. Approval is not required on contracts and invoices for system improvements and
similar services of a non-auditing nature.

Invoices for services rendered under these contracts shall not be paid by the Governmental Unit(s) until
the invoice has been approved by the Secretary of the LGC. (This also includes any progress billings.)[G.S.
159-34 and 115C-447] All invoices for Audit work shall be submitted in PDF format to the Secretary of the LGC
for approval. The invoice marked ‘approved ’with approval date shall be returned to

Page 2 



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

the Auditor to present to the Governmental Unit(s) for payment. This  is not applicable to 
contracts for audits of hospitals. 

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the provisions of this contract, the Governmental
Unit(s) shall pay to the Auditor, upon approval by the Secretary of the LGC if required, the fee, which
includes any costs the Auditor may incur from work paper or peer reviews or any other quality assurance
program required by third parties (federal and state grantor and oversight agencies or other organizations)
as required under the Federal and State Single Audit Acts. This does not include fees for any pre-issuance
reviews that may be required by the NC Association of CPAs (NCACPA) Peer Review Committee or NC
State Board of CPA Examiners (see Item 13).

If the Governmental Unit(s) has/have outstanding revenue bonds, the Auditor shall submit to LGC taff,
either in the notes to the audited financial statements or as a separate report, a calculation demonstrating
compliance with the revenue bond rate covenant. Additionally, the Auditor shall submit to LGC taff
simultaneously with the Governmental Unit’s (Units’) audited financial statements any other bond compliance
statements or additional reports required by the authorizing bond documents, unless otherwise specified in the
bond documents.

After completing the audit, the Auditor shall submit to the Governing Board a written report of audit. This
report shall include, but not be limited to, the following information: (a) Management’s Discussion and Analysis,
(b) the financial statements and notes of the Governmental Unit(s) and all of its component units prepared in
accordance with GAAP, (c) supplementary information requested by the Governmental Unit(s) or required for full
disclosure under the law, and (d) the Auditor’s opinion on the material presented. The Auditor shall furnish the
required number of copies of the report of audit to the Governing Board upon completion.

If the audit firm is required by the NC State Board, the NCACPA Peer Review Committee, or the
Secretary of the LGC to have a pre-issuance review of its audit work, there shall be a statement in the
engagement letter indicating the pre-issuance review requirement. There also shall be a statement that the
Governmental Unit(s) shall not be billed for the pre-issuance review. The pre-issuance review shall be performed 
prior to the completed audit being submitted to LGC Staff. The pre-issuance review report shall accompany the 
audit report upon submission to LGC Staff.

The Auditor shall submit the report of audit in PDF format to LGC Staff. For audits of units other than
hospitals, the audit report should be submitted when (or prior to) submitting the final invoice for services
rendered. The report of audit, as filed with the Secretary of the LGC, becomes a matter of public record for
inspection, review and copy in the offices of the LGC by any interested parties. Any subsequent revisions to
these reports shall be sent to the Secretary of the LGC. These audited financial statements, excluding the 
Auditors’ opinion, may be used in the preparation of official statements for debt offerings by municipal bond 
rating services to fulfill secondary market disclosure requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
and for other lawful purposes of the Governmental Unit(s) without requiring consent of the Auditor. If the LGC 
Staff determines that corrections need to be made to the Governmental Unit’s (Units’) financial statements, those
corrections shall be provided within three business days of notification unless another deadline is agreed to by
LGC taff.

Should circumstances disclosed by the audit call for a more detailed investigation by the Auditor than
necessary under ordinary circumstances, the Auditor shall inform the Governing Board in writing of the need
for such additional investigation and the additional compensation required therefore. Upon approval by the

Page 3 



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20

Secretary of the LGC, this contract may be modified or amended to include the increased time, compensation, 
or both as may be agreed upon by the Governing Board and the Auditor. 

If an approved contract needs to be modified or amended for any reason, the change shall be made in
writing pre-audited if the change includes a change in audit fee (pre-audit requirement does not apply to
ospitals). This amended contract shall be completed in full, including a written explanation of the change, 

signed and dated by all original parties to the contract. It shall then be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for 
approval. No change to the audit contract shall be effective unless approved by the Secretary of the LGC, the 
Governing Board, and the Auditor.

A copy of the engagement letter, issued by the Auditor and signed by both the Auditor and the
Governmental Unit(s), shall be attached to this contract, and except for fees, work, and terms not related to audit
services, shall be incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein as part of this contract. In case of conflict
between the terms of the engagement letter and the terms of this contract, the terms of this contract shall take
precedence. Engagement letter terms that conflict with the contract are deemed to be void unless the conflicting
terms of this contract are specifically deleted in Item  of this contract. Engagement letters containing
indemnification clauses shall not be accepted by LGC Staff.

Special provisions should be limited. Please list any special provisions in an attachment.

A separate contract should not be made for each division to be audited or report to be submitted. If a
DPCU is subject to the audit requirements detailed in the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and
a separate audit report is issued, a separate audit contract is required. If a separate report is not to be issued
and the DPCU is included in the primary government audit, the DPCU shall be named along with the p
government on this audit contract. DPCU Board approval date, signatures from the DPCU Board chairman and
finance officer also shall be included on this contract.

The contract shall be executed, pre-audited (pre-audit requirement does not apply to hospitals), and 
physically signed by all parties including Governmental Unit(s) and the Auditor, then submitted in PDF format to 
the Secretary of the LGC.

The contract is not valid until it is approved by the Secretary of the LGC. The staff of the LGC shall notify
the Governmental Unit and Auditor of contract approval by email. The audit should not be started before the
contract is approved.

Retention of Client Records: Auditors are subject to the NC State Board of CPA Examiners’ Retention of
Client Records Rule 21 NCAC 08N .0305 as it relates to the provision of audit and other attest services, as well
as non-attest services. Clients and former clients should be familiar with the requirements of this rule prior to
requesting the return of records.

This contract may be terminated at any time by mutual consent and agreement of the Governmental
Unit(s) and the Auditor, provided that (a) the consent to terminate is in writing and signed by both parties, (b) the
parties have agreed on the fee amount which shall be paid to the Auditor (if applicable), and (c) no termination
shall be effective until approved in writing by the Secretary of the LGC.

The Governmental Unit’s (Units’) failure or forbearance to enforce, or waiver of, any right or an event of
breach or default on one occasion or instance shall not constitute the waiver of such right, breach or default on
any subsequent occasion or instance.

There are no other agreements between the parties hereto and no other agreements relative hereto that
shall be enforceable unless entered into in accordance with the procedure set out herein and approved by the
Secretary of the LGC.

Page 4 



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

E-Verify. Auditor shall comply with the requirements of NCGS Chapter 64 Article 2. Further, if Auditor
utilizes any subcontractor(s), Auditor shall require such subcontractor(s) to comply with the requirements of
NCGS Chapter 64, Article 2.

or all non-attest services,
the Auditor shall adhere to the independence rules of the AICPA Professional Code of Conduct and
Governmental Auditing Standards, 2018 Revision (as applicable). Financial statement preparation
assistance shall be deemed a “significant threat” requiring the Auditor to apply safeguards sufficient to
reduce the threat to an acceptable level. If the Auditor cannot reduce the threats to an acceptable level, the
Auditor cannot complete the audit. If the Auditor is able to reduce the threats to an acceptable level, the
documentation of this determination, including the safeguards applied, must be included in the audit
workpapers.
All non-attest service(s) being performed by the Auditor that are necessary to perform the audit must be 
identified and included in this contract. The Governmental Unit shall designate an individual with the suitable 
skills, knowledge, and/or experience (SKE) necessary to oversee the services and accept responsibility for 
the results of the services performed. If the Auditor is able to identify an individual with the appropriate SKE, 
s/he must document and include in the audit workpapers how he/she reached that conclusion. If the Auditor 
determines that an individual with the appropriate SKE cannot be identified, the Auditor cannot perform both 
the non-attest service(s) and the audit. See "Fees for Audit Services" page of this contract to disclose the 
person identified as having the appropriate SKE for the Governmental Unit. 

Page 5 



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

The process for submitting contracts, audit reports and invoices is subject to change. Auditors and
units should use the submission process and instructions in effect at the time of submission. Refer to the
N.C. Department of State Treasurer website at 

Page  



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

FEES FOR AUDIT SERVICES 

1. For all non-attest services, the Auditor shall adhere to the independence rules of the AICPA Professional
Code of Conduct (as applicable) and Governmental Auditing Standards,2018 Revision. Refer to Item 2  of
this contract for specific requirements. The following information must be provided by the Auditor; contracts
presented to the LGC without his information will be not be approved.
Financial statements were prepared by: Auditor Governmental Unit Third Party 

If applicable: Individual at Governmental Unit designated to have the suitable skills, knowledge, and/or 
experience (SKE) necessary to oversee the  non-attest  services  and  accept  responsibility  for  the 
results of these services:      
 Name:   Title :    Email Address: 

Fees may not be included in this contract for work performed on Annual Financial Information Reports
(AFIRs), Form 990s, or other services not associated with audit fees and costs. Such fees may be included in
the engagement letter but may not be included in this contract or in any invoices requiring approval of the LGC.
See Items 8  for details on other allowable and excluded fees.

Prior to submission of the completed audited financial report  applicable compliance reports
  (if required) the Auditor may submit invoices for

approval for services rendered , not to exceed 75% of the billings
Should the 75% cap provided

below conflict with the cap calculated by LGC taff based on the billings on file with the LGC, the LGC
calculation prevails. All invoices for services rendered in an audit engagement as defined in 20 NCAC .0503
shall be submitted to the Commission for approval before any payment is made. Payment before approval is a
violation of law. (This  not applicable to contracts and invoices associated with audits of hospitals).

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT FEES 

Primary Government Unit 

Audit Fee $ 

Additional Fees Not Included in Audit Fee: 

Fee per Major Program $ 

Writing Financial Statements $ 
All Other Non-Attest Services $ 
75% Cap for Interim Invoice Approval 
(not applicable to hospital contracts) 

$ 

DPCU FEES (if applicable) 
Discretely Presented Component Unit 

Audit Fee $ 

Additional Fees Not Included in Audit Fee: 

Fee per Major Program $ 

Writing Financial Statements $ 

All Other Non-Attest Services $ 
75% Cap for Interim Invoice Approval 
(not applicable to hospital contracts) 

$ 

Page  

  

FINANCE DIRECTOR / WASHINGTON CO

✔

MISSY DIXON mdixon@washconc.org

WASHINGTON COUNTY
45,250

3,000

36,187.50

WASHINGTON COUNTY TRAVEL & TOURISM AUTHORITY

3,750

500

3,187.50



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev.

Page

SIGNATURE PAGE

AUDIT FIRM

Audit Firm

Authorized Firm Representative (typed or printed) Signature

Date Email Address

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT

Governmental Unit

Date Primary Government Unit Governing Board Approved Audit Contract
(G.S. 59-34(a) or G.S.115C-447(a))

Mayor/Chairperson (typed or printed) Signature

Date Email Address

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) Signature

Date Email Address

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT – PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICAT

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1)

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

Primary Governmental Unit Finance Officer (typed or printed) Signature

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate Email Address

THOMPSON, PRICE, SCOTT, ADAMS & CO, P.A.

ALAN W. THOMPSON

03/24/22 alanthompson@tpsacpas.com

WASHINGTON COUNTY

MISSY DIXON

mdixon@washconc.org

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Sign Here

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Sign Here



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. /20

Page

SIGNATURE PAGE – DPCU
(complete only if applicable)

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

DPCU

Date DPCU Governing Board Approved Audit 
Contract (Ref: G.S. 159-34(a) or G.S. 115C-447(a))

Chairperson (typed or printed) Signature

Date Email Address

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) Signature

Date Email Address

DPCU – PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

 Finance Officer (typed or printed) Signature

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate Email Address

WASHINGTON COUNTY TRAVEL & TOURISM AUTHORITY

MISSY DIXON

mdixon@washconc.org

PRINT

brandy
Sign Here

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Sign Here



Members 
American Institute of CPAs - N.C. Association of CPAs - AICPA Division of Firms 

 

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co, P.A. 
P.O. Box 398 

1626 S Madison Street 
Whiteville, NC  28472 

Telephone (910) 642-2109 
Fax (910) 642-5958 

Alan W. Thompson, CPA 
R. Bryon Scott, CPA 

Gregory S. Adams, CPA 

 
March 24, 2022 
 
Washington County 
PO Box 1007 
Plymouth, North Carolina 27962 
 
To Management and Those Charged With Governance: 
 
We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide the Washington County for the year 
ended June 30, 2022.  We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, 
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, 
including the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, of 
the Washington County as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022.  Accounting standards generally accepted in the 
United States provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and 
analysis (MD&A), to supplement the Washington County’s basic financial statements.  Such information, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context.  As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to 
the Washington County’s RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We will 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  The following RSI is required by generally 
accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited: 
 

1. Management’s discussion and analysis. 
2. Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance Schedule of Total Pension Liability (Asset) and 

Schedule of Total Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 
3. Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Schedule of County 

Contributions – LGERS 
4. Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Schedule of County 

Contributions – ROD 
5. Schedule of Proportionate Share of the County’s Net OPEB Liability and Contributions – Retiree Health 

Benefit Fund 
 
We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies the 
Washington County’s financial statements.  We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and will provide an opinion on it in relation to 
the financial statements as a whole: 
     

1. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards. 
2. Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements, Budgetary Schedules, and Other Schedules 



 
Our responsibility for other information included in documents containing the entity’s audited financial statements 
and auditors’ report does not extend beyond the financial information identified in the report.  We have no 
responsibility for determining whether such other information contained in these documents is properly stated. 
 
Audit Objectives 
 
The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented, 
in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the 
fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole.  The objective also includes reporting on-  
 

 Internal control related to the financial statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial 
statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

 
 Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on 

compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that could have 
a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 
1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

 
The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other 
matters will include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing 
of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in  
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  The 
Uniform Guidance report on internal control over compliance will include a paragraph that states that the purpose of 
the report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control over 
compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.  Both reports will 
state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; and the provisions of the Uniform 
Guidance, and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of major program(s) in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions.  We will 
issue written reports upon completion of our Single Audit.  Our reports will be addressed to the Board of 
Commissioners and management of Washington County.  We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions 
will be expressed.  Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions or add emphasis-
of-matter or other-matter paragraphs.  If our opinions on the financial statements or the Single Audit compliance 
opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance.  If circumstances occur related 
to the condition of your records, the availability of sufficient appropriate audit evidence, or the existence of a 
significant risk of material misstatement of the financial statements caused by error, fraudulent financial reporting, 
or misappropriation of assets, which in our professional judgment prevent us from completing the audit or forming 
an opinion on the financial statements, we retain the right to take any course of action permitted by professional 
standards, including declining to express an opinion or issue a report, or withdrawing from the engagement. 
 
 
Audit Procedures-General 
 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas 
to be tested.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.  We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than 
absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, 
(2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that are attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the entity.  
Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors 
to perform specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide 
reasonable assurance of detecting waste or abuse. 



 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and 
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, an unavoidable risk exists that some 
noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards.  In addition, an 
audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do 
not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements or major programs.  However, we will inform the 
appropriate level of management of any material errors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of 
assets that come to our attention.  We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws 
or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse 
that comes to our attention.  We will include such matters in the reports required for a Single Audit.  Our 
responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for 
which we are not engaged as auditors. 
 
Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, and 
may include tests of the physical existence of inventories (if material), and direct confirmation of receivables and 
certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and 
financial institutions.  We will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and 
they may bill you for responding to this inquiry.  At the conclusion of our audit, we will also require certain written 
representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial statements; schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards; federal award programs; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other 
responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards. 
 
 
Audit Procedures-Internal Controls 
 
Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal control, 
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, 
and extent of further audit procedures.  Test of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain 
controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial 
statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance 
matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.  Our tests, if performed, will be less in 
scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be 
expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
 
As required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material 
noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program.  However, our tests 
will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion 
will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 
 
An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses.  Accordingly, we will express no such opinion.  However, during the audit, we will communicate to 
management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be 
communicated under AICPA professional standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance.   
 
 
Audit Procedures-Compliance 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
we will perform tests of the Washington County’s compliance with provisions of applicable laws, regulations, 
contracts, and agreements, including grant agreements.  Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, the 
objective of those procedures will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such 
an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
 
The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the auditee has complied with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards 
applicable to major programs.  Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and other applicable procedures 
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of Washington County’s major programs.  For federal programs that are included in the 2020 
Compliance Supplement, our compliance and internal control procedures will relate to the compliance requirements 
that the 2021 Compliance supplement identifies as being subject to audit.  The purpose of these procedures will be 



to express an opinion on Washington County’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major 
programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 
 
 
Other Services  
 
We will also assist in preparing the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, and 
related notes of Washington County in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and the 
Uniform Guidance based on information provided by you.  We may also have to assist with some year-end 
adjustments.  These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such 
services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.  We will perform the services in 
accordance with applicable professional standards.  The other services are limited to the financial statements, 
schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, and related notes services previously defined.  We, in our sole 
professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be 
construed as assuming management responsibilities. 
 
 
Management Responsibilities 
 
Management is responsible for (1) designing, implementing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, including internal controls over federal and State awards, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing 
activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; (2) following laws and regulations; (3) 
ensuring that there is reasonable assurance that government programs are administered in compliance with 
compliance requirements; and (4) ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and properly 
reported.  Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with 
applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements.  You are also responsible for the selection and 
application of accounting principles; for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, schedule of 
expenditures of federal and State awards, and all accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles; and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations (including federal statutes) 
and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements (including award agreements).  Your responsibilities also 
include identifying significant contractor relationships in which the contractor has responsibility for program 
compliance and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. 
 
Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the 
accuracy and completeness of that information.  You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all 
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements, (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other information as 
needed to perform an audit under the Uniform Guidance, (3) additional information that we may request for the 
purpose of the audit, and (4) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. 
 
Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to 
us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during 
the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for 
informing us about all known or suspected fraud or illegal acts affecting the government involving (1) management, 
(2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud or illegal acts could have 
a material effect on the financial statements.  Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any 
allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees, 
former employees, grantors, regulators, or others.  In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that 
the entity complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants.  Management is also 
responsible for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that we report.  Additionally, as required by the Uniform Guidance, it is 
management’s responsibility to evaluate and monitor noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms 
and conditions of federal awards; take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including 
noncompliance identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective action on reported audit findings; 
and prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a separate corrective action plan.  The summary 
schedule of prior audit findings should be available for our review by May 1, 2022.  
 



You are responsible for identifying all federal and State awards received and understanding and complying with the 
compliance requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards 
(including notes and noncash assistance received) in conformity with the Uniform Guidance.  You agree to include 
our report on the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards in any document that contains and indicates 
that we have reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards.  You also agree to make the 
audited financial statements readily available to intended users of schedules of expenditures of federal and State 
awards no later than the date the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is issued with our report thereon.  Your 
responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for 
presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; 
(2) you believe the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, including its form and content, is stated 
fairly in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed 
from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have 
disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the 
schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards. 
 
You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have been engaged to 
report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  You agree to include our report on the 
supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported on the supplementary 
information.  You also agree to make the audited financial statements readily available to users of the supplementary 
information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued with our report thereon.  Your 
responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for 
presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary 
information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of 
measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the 
reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying 
the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information. 
 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations.  Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial 
audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit 
Objectives section of this letter.  This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address 
significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, 
or studies.  You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for 
providing that information.  With regard to using the auditors’ report, you understand that you must obtain our prior 
written consent to reproduce or use our report in bond offering official statements or other documents.  With regard 
to electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements published electronically 
on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute information and, therefore, we are not 
required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider the consistency of other information in the 
electronic site with the original document. 
 
You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements, schedules of expenditures 
of federal and State awards, related notes, and any other nonaudit services we provide.  You will be required to 
acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements, 
schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted 
responsibility for them.  Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, (Missy 
Dixon), who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; 
and accept responsibility for them.    
 
Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 
 
We may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving your 
account.  We may share confidential information about you with these service providers, but remain committed to 
maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information.  Accordingly, we maintain internal policies, 
procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal information.  In addition, we will secure 
confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and we will 
take reasonable precautions to determine that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized 
release of your confidential information to others.  In the event that we are unable to secure an appropriate 
confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your confidential 
information with the third-party service provider.  Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the work provided by 
any such third-party service providers. 
 



We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request and 
will locate any documents selected by us for testing.  We will schedule the engagement based in part on deadlines, 
working conditions, and the availability of your key personnel.  We will plan the engagement based on the 
assumption that your personnel will cooperate and provide assistance by performing tasks such as preparing 
requested schedules, retrieving supporting documents, and preparing confirmations.  If for whatever reason your 
personnel are unavailable to provide the necessary assistance in a timely manner, it may substantially increase the 
work we have to do to complete the engagement within the established deadlines, resulting in an increase in fees 
over our original fee estimate.  We will not undertake any accounting services (including but not limited to 
reconciliation of accounts and preparation of requested schedules) without obtaining approval through a written 
change order or additional engagement letter for such additional work. 
 
At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection Form that 
summarizes our audit findings.  It is management’s responsibility to submit the reporting package (including 
financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings, auditors’ 
reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit clearinghouse.  We will 
coordinate with you the electronic submission and certification.  If applicable, we will provide copies of our report 
for you to include with the reporting package you will submit to pass-through entities.  The Data Collection Form 
and the reporting package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 days after receipt of the auditors’ report or nine 
months after the end of the audit period, unless a longer period is agreed to in advance by the cognizant or oversight 
agency for audits.   
 
We will provide copies of our reports to the Board; however, management is responsible for distribution of the 
reports and the financial statements.  Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and confidential 
information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. and 
constitutes confidential information.  However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and 
appropriate individuals will be made available upon request in a timely manner to Oversight Agencies (or its 
designee), a federal agency provided direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for 
purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities.  We will 
notify you of any such request.  If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the 
supervision of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. personnel.  Furthermore, upon request, we may provide 
copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties.  These parities may intend, or decide, to 
distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. 
  
The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release 
date or for any additional period requested by the federal cognizant agency.  If we are aware that a federal awarding 
agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party contesting the audit 
finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 
 
We expect to begin our audit by approximately May 1, 2022 and to issue our reports no later than October 31, 2022.  
Alan Thompson is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the reports 
or authorizing another individual to sign them.   
 
Our fee for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report reproduction, 
word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our gross fee, including expenses, 
should not exceed $52,500.  Also, any excessive additional fees incurred in obtaining required audit evidence (i.e. 
bank confirmations) will be billed directly to the Board.  Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of 
responsibility involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit.  However, if we are not able 
to complete the audit as agreed upon in the Request for Proposal and it is determined to be the fault of the auditor 
(i.e. not because of delays in obtaining confirmations from the State, required actuary reports, being able to get 
onsite for testing due to government restrictions on travel, etc), there will be a $1,000 penalty for every 30 days the 
audit is late.  Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on 
presentation.  In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or 
more overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full.  If we elect to terminate our services for 
nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even 
if we have not completed our report(s).  You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to 
reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination.  The above fee is based on anticipated 
cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during 
the audit.   
 



If additional programs are required to be tested that have not been identified as major programs for testing in 
previous years, additional fees may be charged at standard hourly rates. If significant additional time is necessary, 
we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs.  However, we 
believe our contract as it is will be sufficient to cover but we do want to reserve the right to discuss this issue. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the Washington County and believe this letter accurately 
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement.  If you have any questions, please let us know.  If you agree 
with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us.  
 
 
Very truly yours, 

 
Alan W. Thompson, CPA 
Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. 
 



 
RESPONSE: 
 
 
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the Washington County. 
 
Management signature: ________________________________________________ 
 
Title: _______________________________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________________________  
 
 
Governance signature: ________________________________________________ 
 
Title: _______________________________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________________________  
 
 
CC: Board of Commissioners 

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Accepted

brandy
Sign Here

brandy
Sign Here



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:    April 4, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for 
comments from the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public 
comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the 
beginning of each regular monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum 
of thirty (30) minutes. 
Additionally this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the 
meeting at which they wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins 
prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall clearly write their name, address, and the topic 
upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, 
which I wish to remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and 

begin their remarks by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer 

any impromptu questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks 
to the Board as a body, and not to any individual board or staff members.  
Discussions between speakers and members of the audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use 
profanity, racial slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal 
attacks of commissioners.  



5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their 
remarks depending on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may 
limit the number of speakers allowed to make substantially similar comments 
with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are 
encouraged to leave a copy of such remarks and documents with the County 
Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of 
public hearings set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session 
matters, including without limitation matters within the attorney-client privilege, 
anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property acquisition, and matters 
which are made confidential by law. 

 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:     April 4, 2022 
 
ITEM:       Public Hearing:  Solar Ordinance Amendment, Mr. Allen Pittman, 

Planning Director 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
There will be a Public Hearing held as required for an amendment to the Solar Ordinance.  
Mr. Potter has also created a Resolution for approving this amendment after the Public 
Hearing.   
 
See attached. 
 



Agenda Item Memo   Page 1 of 2 
 

                 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

FAX (252) 793-1183 

   AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE: April 4th, 2022   MEMO Date: March 31st, 2022                     ITEM:    
SUBJECT:  Solar Ordinance/Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
DEPARTMENT: Planning 
FROM:  Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney (CM/CA) 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Draft Resolution 2022-013 (2pgs)  

PURPOSE: To consider approving by resolution an amendment to the Solar Ordinance/Zoning Ordinance 
proposed by the Planning Board to remove the mitigation bond requirement.  
 
BACKGROUND:  In late summer/fall of 2021 the Planning Board began reviewing upcoming legislative changes 
to solar development along with the language of Washington County’s own Solar Ordinance related to mitigation 
bonds.  Ultimately the Planning Board decided to recommend removing the county itself from the mitigation process 
by recommending that the mitigation bond language be replaced with language requiring the developer and property 
owner to contract with one another regarding future mitigation responsibility, and to indemnify the county from 
such liability. 
 

- From the Planning Director:  
As included on Notice of Public Hearing advertised in the Roanoke Beacon on March16 2022 

and March 23 2022, I present to you changes to the Solar Ordinance (SORD). 
 
The proposed changes deal with the remediation bond requirement. The purpose of this change is 

to remove burden to future taxpayers of Washington County. Bond requirements for renewable energy 
source have been a topic of discussion in the State Legislature in recent years. I have served on a few 
panels and groups to discuss this topic. 

 
The North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality (NCDEQ) has been directed by the 

North Carolina General Assembly through Session Law 2021-165 (House Bill 951) to develop a plan to 
ensure adequate financial resources for the decommissioning of utility-scale solar projects to be submitted 
to the General Assembly for legislative action no later than March 1, 2022.   

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 

JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES 

CAROL V. PHELPS 

WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 

https://www.ncleg.gov/Sessions/2021/Bills/House/PDF/H951v6.pdf


Agenda Item Memo   Page 2 of 2 
 

The Planning Board and I feel that removing the bond requirement from the local permitting 
process will take future financial a liability for solar site remediation from County responsibility and return 
it back to those who are receiving income from the solar sites. 

 
The change in the ordinance will also require a legal waiver to be created and recorded between 

the developer and the property owners. This waiver will hold harmless Washington County from liability 
in the present, as well as, in the future. This form will be created with the help of the County Attorney and 
will be used as a template on projects going forward. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  

 
1. Conduct a Public Hearing on this Matter 

 
 
After considering the information presented, unless you are opposed to the proposed amendment as 
recommended by the Planning Board: 
 

2. Vote to approve the amendment attached Resolution 2022-013 



Washington County Resolution 2022-013  Page 1 of 2 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

RESOLUTION 2022-013 
AMENDING SOLAR ORDINANCE  

(ARTICLE 13 OF THE COUNTY WIDE ZONING ORDINANCE) 
 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NCGS § 153A-121 (General ordinance making power), subsection (a): 

“A County may by ordinance define, regulate, prohibit, or abate acts, omissions, or conditions 
detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of its citizens and the peace and dignity of the county; and 
may define and abate nuisances.”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of Commissioners has previously adopted a county 

wide zoning ordinance pursuant to NCGS § 160D-702 (Zoning Regulation – Grant of Power) and/or 
other applicable law; and 

 
WHEREAS, from time to time it is necessary and/or desirable to amend portions of said zoning 

ordinance in order to protect the health, safety, and welfare of its citizens and to adequate address 
changes in zoning practices and development planning; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Washington County Planning Board has met, given reasonable consideration 

to, and recommends that Article 13 of said zoning ordinance entitled Washington County Solar Energy 
Development Ordinance (“SORD”) be amended as follows: 

 
- The current language of Section 12 (DECOMMISSIONING, ABANDONMENT, HAZARD 

MITIGATION) Subsection A(6) should be removed and replaced in its entirety with the 
following: 

 
6.       It shall be the responsibility of the solar developer to provide a contract to the land owner 

for decommissioning of the solar project.  This contract shall hold harmless Washington 
County, its staff, employees, administration, assigns, successor and heirs.  Such contract 
and responsibility will be the sole responsibility of the developer and/or holder of the 
property at the time of decommissioning. 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR.,  

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2022-013  Page 2 of 2 
 

WHEREAS, notice has been properly given and a legislative public hearing has been duly held 
pursuant to NCGS § 160D-601, regarding the proposed amendment; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of Commissioners has considered the written 
recommendation of the Washington County Planning Board and/or Planning Director, has carefully 
considered all viewpoints expressed during the public hearing, if any, and has conducted such reviews, 
analysis, and investigations of this matter as it deems necessary, just, and proper; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NCGS 160D-605 (Governing Board Statement) the Washington 

County Board of Commissioners has determined that the proposed amendment described hereinabove is: 
 

- not considered to be inconsistent with any comprehensive plan(s) adopted by Washington 
County; 

 
- reasonable in light of recent and progressive changes in the solar energy industry; and 
 
- in the public interest and promotes and protects the health, safety, and welfare of county citizens.  

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED & ORDAINED by the Washington County Board 

of Commissioners that Article 13 of the Washington County Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended as 
follows: 

 

- The current language of Section 12 (DECOMMISSIONING, ABANDONMENT, HAZARD 
MITIGATION) Subsection A(6) should be removed and replaced in its entirety with the 
following: 

 
6.   It shall be the responsibility of the solar developer to provide a contract to the land owner 

for decommissioning of the solar project.  This contract shall hold harmless Washington 
County, its staff, employees, administration, assigns, successor and heirs.  Such contract and 
responsibility will be the sole responsibility of the developer and/or holder of the property at 
the time of decommissioning. 

 
ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___ 
 

 

       __________________________________________ 
       Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 

       Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 

 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  4 
 
       DATE:     April 4, 2022 
 
ITEM:      Trillium’s Annual Report, Mr. Dave Peterson, Senior Regional Director 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Dave Peterson, Senior Regional Director requested to come and speak to the Board 
tonight and give a presentation on Trillium’s Annual Report. 
 
See attached. 
 
 
 
 
 



Transforming Lives

TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES 
ANNUAL REPORT WASHINGTON COUNTY

DAVE PETERSON, MA
SENIOR REGIONAL DIRECTOR



TRILLIUM UPDATE

Trillium’s mission:  Transforming lives and building 
community well-being through partnership and 
proven solutions.       
 Who We Are
 Medicaid Transformation Changes
 Organizational changes 
 County Data



Who We Are - Numbers

 28 Counties, but numbers are from last fiscal year with 26 
counties

 1,469,101 total population 
 244,075 Medicaid Eligible
 Served 58,452 individuals from mild to severe mental health 

needs
 70% with MH needs
 20% with SUD
 10% with IDD

 Approximately 500 Providers
 $475,921,857.00 spent on services last year
 Smallest County- Tyrrell 3,665- Largest County -New 

Hanover 238,907
 Cover over 12,000 square miles



Three Regions

REGION POPULATION
SQUARE 

MILES
# OF 

COUNTIES

Northern 252,211 4,235 11

Central 494,312 4,717 9

Southern 797,086 5,063 8



Medicaid Transformation- Standard Plans

 Standard Plan- 5 companies were awarded
 Amerihealth Caritas NC Inc.
 Blue Cross Blue Shield of NC
 UnitedHealthcare of NC Inc. 
 WellCare of NC Inc.
 Carolina Complete Health- covers regions 3, 4 and 5

 These Plans are managing the mild to moderate 
Medicaid behavioral health recipients

They started on July 1st 2021



Medicaid Transformation Tailored Plan:

 7 of 7 LME/MCO’s were awarded to become Tailored 
Plans

 1 of the 7 - Cardinal Innovations, decided to merge with 
Vaya, so we will have 6 Tailored Plans

 Cardinal covered 20 counties, 11 of them decided to go 
to other MCO’s besides Vaya, including Halifax county 
to Trillium, which occurred on December 1st 2021

 Bladen county requested to join Trillium from 
Eastpointe and that took effect on Feb. 1st 2022

 Original date to go live with the Tailored Plan was 
moved from July 1st, 2022 to December 1st 2022.



Behavioral Health I/DD Tailored Plan Regions



Medicaid Transformation Tailored Plan 
Continued

 We will have a readiness review late summer
 Dec. 1st 2022- Begin the Tailored Plan managing 

Severe Behavioral Health, Substance Use and I/DD 
population like we do today, but in addition 
managing individuals physical health

 We are contracting with a Pharmacy Benefits 
Manager to oversee contract with approximately 
2000 pharmacies

 We are also going to be contracting with all Primary 
care agencies that serve individuals on Medicaid



Organizational Changes

 Leza Wainwright retired and Joy Futrell is our new 
CEO

 Richard Leissner moved to a new job, so Senitria
Goodman is our new General Council

 Sue Ann Forrest is our new Director of Government 
Relations

 We have had to move staff because of the Tailored 
Plan requirements



Organizational changes continued:

Call Centers
 Pharmacy
 Provider
 Nurse
 Current Call Center

Care Management
 Whole Person Care

Disaster Response Unit
 Meeting with Emergency Management Departments
 Collection of Providers Disaster Response Plans
 Map to Readiness- before, during and after a Hurricane



Project Updates

 Naloxone kits
 Mobile Clinics
 Tribal Engagement
 Family Navigators
 Co-Responder Pilots
 CFAC adding a representative with TBI
 Healing Place in New Hanover



Consumers served in Washington County

Total Consumers served – 565

 Mental Health – 475
 Substance Use – 105
 I/DD – 76

Total is unduplicated, since a single individual may receive services in more than one 
category



Transforming Lives

QUESTIONS?



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:     April 4, 2022 
 
ITEM:       Travel & Tourism Authority (TTA) State of the Union, Mr. Tom 

Harrison, TTA Director 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Tom Harrison, Travel & Tourism Authority Director asked to come speak to the Board 
tonight regarding the State of the Union of the TTA. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  6 
 
       DATE:     April 4, 2022 
 
ITEM:     Southern Albemarle Association (SAA) Transportation Needs, Ms. 

Paulique Horton, Washington County Vice-President, SAA 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As the Washington County Vice-President of the SAA, Ms. Horton was asked to speak to 
the Board and find out what our county’s transportation needs are. 
 
Ms. Horton will then relay them back to the SAA. 
 
Please come to the meeting with items regarding transportation needs of the County. 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:     April 4, 2022 
 
ITEM:        NCDOT Update, Ms. Gretchen Byrum, Mr. Win Bridgers, and Mr. 

Ronnie Sawyer, NCDOT Representatives 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

NCDOT had actually requested to attend one of the Board’s meetings in the summer, but 
when we found out that the SAA wanted to discuss the County’s transportation needs, we 
felt it would be good to NCDOT at this meeting, and they were able to oblige us. 
 
They will bring handouts to the meeting. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:   April 4, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
TRAVEL & TOURISM AUTHORITY 
 
Mr. Tom Harrison, TTA Director is recommending that Mr. Marcus Williams replace 
Mr. Raj Patel on the TTA Board.  Mr. Patel has sold his hotel and no longer interested in 
being on the Board.  Mr. Williams has purchased quite a few properties in the County. 
 
Mr. Williams has agreed to serve if appointed. 
 
Library Board 
 
Librarian Brandy Goodwin is recommending that Ms. Keyoshia C. Liverman be 
appointed to the Library Board to fill a vacancy. 
 
Ms. Liverman has agreed to serve if re-appointed. 
 
DSS Board 
 
Clerk to the DSS Board, Cathy Ange, said that her Board has recommended 
Commissioner Julius Walker, Jr. be reappointed to the DSS Board. 
 
Mr. Walker has agreed to serve if re-appointed. 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  9  
 
       DATE:  April 4, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer will discuss the enclosed budget amendments/transfers 
to the Board for approval/disapproval and information. 
 
See attached. 
 
 
 

































































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   10 
 
       DATE:     April 4, 2022 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
 Department Head Reports from March 2022—see attachment 
 Statistics Reports from March 2022—see attachment 
 Register of Deeds Rollup Summary—see attachment 

 
 

 



 
 

 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
 April 4, 2022 

Board of Commissioners’ In Person & Facebook Livestreamed Meeting 
 
Geographic Information Systems 
Harry White 
 
The GIS/Mapping Department is doing fine. The following tasks were completed by the 
GIS/Mapping Department  

• Verified of property as recorded on deeds 
• Transfer of real property 
• Land-parcel splits and recombination of property 
• Assist the general public with maps and related needs 
• Managed correspondence via phone, email  
• Update property maps for the Tax Department  
• Update estate deeds  

 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
EMS STAFFING:   
All FT Transport Positions remain filled, however there are two FT employees out due to 
medical circumstances. EMS has two FT Basic EMT positions open due to losing one employee 
to the Sheriff’s Office and one employee taking a Managerial position in a non-EMS related 
field.  She will remain with us on a PT basis. Currently there are no employees out due to 
COVID or COVID-Like illnesses.   We are accepting applications for part time positions.   
 
EMPLOYEE SAFETY: 
PPE remains at a comfortable level and is sufficient to absorb a peak in call volume for 
approximately 31 days.  EMS and Transport Providers continue to manage the daily disinfecting 
practices inside the bases and ambulances with intermittent deep decon of EMS units.  
 
OTHER SYSTEM BUSINESS:  
Welcome our newest Part Time employee: EMT Jasmine Ratcliff.  Jasmine just completed the 
Basic EMT Course at BCCC and is a resident of Creswell. 



 
 

 

 
EMT Jasmine Ratcliff 

 
In addition to our scheduled training on Workplace Safety Practices and Responder Mental 
Health Awareness this month, we also included a required Cultural Sensitivity review.  97% of 
our providers completed the additional training which included a quick checklist designed to 
facilitate cultural awareness and sensitivity specifically in medical settings to ensure maximum 
successful recovery and outcomes for patients.  
 

 
 

UNC PECC+ Program : Paramedic/PECC Coordinator Jessica Howery has been busy attending 
training classes and collecting data for the National EMS for Children Survey.  The 2021 
National results are included with this department head report. Our local data will be used to 
pinpoint specific training and equipment needed in our system. 
Duke RACE-CARS Trial Program:  We have been working to identify and map all AED’s 
located in Washington and Tyrrell Counties.   



 
 

 

 
 

We just completed our System Renewal by the NC Office of EMS, without difficulty. This 
occurs every 6 years and involves an in-depth review of our System Plans.  This includes our 
EMD Center designation, Agency License and System Approval.  
  
Thank you for your continued support of the Washington Tyrrell County EMS System.   
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
Washington County Recreation played an E. A. C basketball tournament in Edenton on March 
12th.  The 9 under won one game the 16 under were the champions. The 12 under played well.  
Our next basketball tournament is in Ahoskie on April 2nd and the teams are preparing for State 
games in June.  
  
Open gym and sign ups for Softball, Baseball, Tee ball will be on some Monday, Thursday 5:30 
-6:30 and Sat 11:00 am to 1:00 pm at the Gym.  
 
If we don't get enough participates for softball, baseball and tee ball, we will be signing up for 
flag football.  
 
 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
I have been business preparing for the early voting primary next month. Early voting begins 
April 28th at 8:am and ends on May 14th at 3:00pm. Election Day is May 17th. 
 
 
Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
 

• We have finalized our Summer Reading planning and are working on making a schedule 
listing the performers who will be visiting the library beginning in June. 

• The Grassroots Arts series planning is going well; we have already booked four 
performers and are still on the hunt to book a few more before the end of June. 

• In-person programming has resumed but has not drawn in the interest we would like; 
storytime has taken a huge hit. 

• We are constantly doing collection development and adding new titles to our catalog on a 
monthly basis. 

• The Library Board has selected a candidate to fill its open position; the newest member 
of the Board is Keyoshia Liverman (See Letter of Recommendation) 

• Miss Liverman’s induction into the Board will be discussed further during the April 4th 
Library Board Meeting.   

 
Other Business: 
We would sincerely like to thank the County for installing our new security doors here at the 
library. They are more functional now and help us better protect our staff and patrons from 
outside threats. THANK YOU!  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

Veteran’s Service Officers Report 
Burl Walker 
 
During this period the Veterans Service Officer assisted 3 veterans and 2 dependents: 

• I submitted 1 request for a grove marker with Presidential Memorial Certificates  
• I submitted 1 request for County Tax Exclusion request for a widow  
• I requested 1 DD-214 Discharge from the Register of Deeds office.  
• I explained the use of E-Benefits to a veteran. 
• I submitted 1 request for a Disabled Veterans License Plate 

 
 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 

1. We are extremely busy.  We are still receiving email requests, phone calls, fax 
requests and office visits for different information including information for tax 
bills, assessments, listings, exemptions.    

2. We continue to collect payments for accounts that have been referred for 
foreclosure – every time we get a payment, receive correspondence (such as the 
need to add costs) or are notified in any way about a property in foreclosure we 



 
 

 

notify ZLS and update the accounts in foreclosure.  As information is received 
from Zacchaeus Legal Services (ZLS) we update the accounts.  We also handle 
phone calls, emails or visits from persons whose property are in foreclosure and 
persons interested in buying property in foreclosure. 

3. Denise processed the Insolvents, Refunds and Releases reports. 
4. Denise processed the monthly reports from NCVTS.  
5. Denise researched estate files at the Clerk of Court’s office.  
6. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling adjustments, refunds, 

releases, and general questions.  
7. Darlene worked on ZLS information, on check requests to pay ZLS for fees/costs 

after we have received full payment on some properties.  
8. Staff continues to handle the calls regarding Republic Services (RS) and the 

taxpayers over trash cans, recycle bins, trash and debris pickup. We have been 
using the new Work Order form and it seems to be working very well.  

9. In February I submitted the State Fire Marshall report.   
10. I sat in on a webinar offered by the School of Government March 1st – 4th.  
11. Notice of Lien Advertisement / Debt Setoff letters were mailed in March.  These 

are sent to the taxpayers who are delinquent on their 2021 taxes and any back 
years.  Since their mailing we have had a tremendous amount of phone calls.  
Delinquent 2021 taxes are set to be advertised April 27th.  

12. Sat in on a meeting over NCPTS – tax office software 
13. Foreclosure sales were held on March 24th.  
14. Preliminary Scrolls were sent to the towns, they need these for their budgets. 
15. New Construction visits and any notices we received of changes are being 

reviewed this week.    
16. Personal Property listings and Business Personal Property listings that have been 

processed are being double-checked to make sure they are entered correctly.  
17. Christal is searching for addresses for mail that has been returned – we always get 

returned mail when we have a mailing such as the Notice of Lien Advertisement / 
Debt Setoff letters.  

 
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 
Permits issued   24 
 
Inspections completed  34 
 
Plan reviews    6 
 
Flood/Drainage/Map consultation with Soil and Water Tech    
 
Tuesdays are Administrative Days for the Planner/Inspector, unless an emergency inspection 
becomes necessary 
 



 
 

 

4th Budget Request Package turned in to Administration 
7th Commissioners’ meeting – via Facebook 
9th Department Head Meeting 
17th Planning Board – Presentation from Joe Cubas for preliminary application for zoning                                                

RV resort in Pea Ridge.   
21st Fire Chief’s Meeting in Mid-County 
31st Scheduled – Floodplain Virtual Workshop 
 
Connie will be on vacation ½ day on 25th, and 28 - 31 
 
EM1 will be out to Spring Conference March 28 – April 1 
 
 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Soil and Water 
Martha Prinsloo 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Register of Deeds 
Tim Esolen 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Public Utilities 
Doremus Luton 
 

Updates regarding Washington County Water System and C&D Landfill are as follows: 
 
Solid Waste 
 
The landfill took in 44.71 Tons of Leaves, Brush and Limbs, 0.33 Tons of Inert Debris, 
0.58 Tons of Scrap Metal,   96.8 Tons of Construction Debris and 3.88 tons of Scrap 
Tires this month. 
 
Water Department 
 
Water plant staff treated and distributed a total of 11.5 (MG). The average daily usage 
was .410 MG. We served 2646 accounts, billing customers for 7660 MG of water. 



 
 

 

 
 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 

1. Research and get quote for Guy Cayton grant. 
2. Email PO for MCNC installation for 911 Motorola Radios. Site Survey performed March  

3rd. 
3. Troubleshoot issue with My Document folder for Lance Swindell. 
4. Work on FY22-23 IT Budget. Submit. Meet with Curtis, Missy and Richard for Budget 

meeting. 
5. Meet with Mary Moscato to discuss rack in Clerk of Court vault and generator. 
6. Research and get quote for computers in Jail. Current Jail computers purchased March  

2016. Discuss with Missy available funds for purchase. 
7. Research cell phone to replace IT flip phone. Need to be replaced due to 5G rollout. IT  

phone will not be compatible. 
8. Assist with troubleshooting credit card machine at Airport. 
9. Order and install battery backups in Finance office. 
10. Review and quote laptop, office and AV for Planning office. 
11. Teams meeting with NWN Carousel. 
12. Teams meeting with BIO-key. 
13. Troubleshoot issues with BRAZO’s and NIBRS connection. 
14. Review with SBFI and Anna what will need to be done to purchase new 911 furniture. 
15. Teams meeting with Anna, 911 Board (Angie) and AT&T (Gray, JP, Josh and Brian) to  

determine work needed to setup temporary 911 while 911 furniture & radio installation 
takes place. Discuss setting up Teams meeting on April 27th at 9:00am with all vendors  
involved in 911 upgrades. 

16. Create timeline for June 15-26 to coordinate the following in the 911 Center: Move CAD 
WSs, radios, 911 phones and furniture out of the 911 Center, setup temporary 911 in jury  
room, clean carpet, move power/network poles, install new furniture and have electrician  
install power on consoles, move CAD WSs and 911 phones back in 911 Center, install and  
train on new Motorola radios, verify recorder will record new radios. 

17. Site Survey with State Highway Patrol (Waylon Medlin) to move WiFi connection at  
courthouse. 

18. Attend NCPTS meeting with Sherri, Curtis, Richard and Missy. 
19. Troubleshoot courthouse phone issue. Issue is with Century Link/Lumen. 
20. Troubleshoot issue with Jennifer O’Neal’s computer. Run malware tool to detect/remove 

malware/trojans. 
21. Troubleshoot issue with recreation phone lines. 
22. Work with Anna to clean out old electronics from 911 Center and Server Room. 
23. Remove surplus equipment from IT office and make temporary work space for Darlene  



 
 

 

Harrison while her office is being worked on. 
24. Troubleshoot issues with Airport phone lines. 
25. Troubleshoot issue with Veterans office phone lines. 
26. Work with SSG – installation and migration of County server to new server. Verify vendors  

can access and software connections work. Move one backup to Admin Bldg. Current  
server was purchased June 2015. 

27. Update digital door lock codes for 911 and Judges Chamber. 
28. Attend Commissioners meeting. 
29. Attend Departmental meeting. 
30. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
31. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
32. Reconcile Budget Statement. 

 
 
Senior Center 
Vanessa Joyner 
 
Overall:  February was a good month.  The seniors are glad the numbers for COVID-19 are 
dropping.   We are still requiring wearing mask and three (3) feet social distancing.  They are 
attending as usual.   
Chair Volleyball– February 1, 2022 – We play indoor volleyball.  They sit in chairs and we 
have an indoor net.  It is a lot of fun and they enjoy playing it.         
Linked Senior – February 2, 2022 – Linked Senior is a computer program with many games that 
we can play with the seniors.  We display on our TV screen and they sit in the lobby chairs to 
play.  On our calendar, you will see several games we play during the month like:  matching, 
hangman, trivia, and hangman.       
Bingo with Staff – February 3, 202 – the seniors really love to play bingo.   We have a senior 
that has donated prizes for the game.  They get excited when they win.   
Corn Hole – February 4, 2022 – This is a regular game with play on Fridays.  It is a big hit with 
the seniors.  We have some come just to play corn hole.  
Jewelry Making Class– February 7, 2022 – Ms. Bonnie Howard volunteered to teach the 
seniors how to make jewelry.  We made a beautiful bracelet.  She will be teaching classes every 
Monday this month.   
Geriatric Workshop– February 9, 2022 – Ms. Jean Matthews from Vidant Hospital came to do 
a presentation.    
Outreach Project – February 14, 2022 – Ariel did a project with the seniors to give to our 
Volunteers.  They made cards for them.   
Valentine’s Day – February 14, 2022 – We gave out small bags of candy to the seniors for 
Valentine’s Day.  It made them feel special.  
Memory Games – February 15, 2022 - Ms. Lois Davis does a wonderful job with the seniors.   
She plays different games with the seniors to test their memory.  Each month is different.  She 
gives out prizes as well.   They really love that. 
Movie Day – February 16, 2022 – Ariel picked out a movie for the seniors to watch and we pop 
popcorn for them.   They like watching movies.  We use our TV to display the movie.  
Bean Bag Toss – February 17, 2022 – This is a lot of fun to play with the seniors because it is 
similar to corn-hole except the bags will bounce out of the holes.  They are so funny.      



 
 

 

Woo Ball – February 21, 2022 – the seniors are sitting in a circle and bounce a beach ball to 
each other.   It is simple but they really love to play it.  They may hit each other in the head or 
face and they think it’s funny. The beach ball is soft and don’t hurt anyone. 
Nutrition Presentation – February 23, 2022 – Martha Carter talked to the seniors about fried 
foods verses baked.  She was able to share great information with them.  We try to provide 
information that will improve the way they eat. 
Coffee Break - February 28, 2022 – This is a time set aside for the seniors to talk to the Director 
and express their ideas on what to do.  If they have any complaints about the activities or staff, 
this is their time to share.   They get an opportunity to express themselves.   Vanessa also shares 
new ideas the staff have for future activities.   
 
Exercise Classes offered at the Center:  
Yoga – Monday 7:00 p.m. cost $5.00 monthly 
Chair Exercise – Tuesday/Thursday 1:00 – 2:00 cost $5.00 monthly 
Fitness Workout– Monday, Wednesday & Friday – 5:30 cost $10.00 a month 
Line Dancing – Thursday 5:30 with Linda Brannon cost $5.00 a month 
 
The Line Dancing and Fitness Workout classes are opened to all citizens regardless of age. 
 
 
Airport 
Knapp Brabble 
 

1. The recent volatility in crude, gas, jet fuel costs have dramatically  
hurt the business travel and the general aviation sector. Traffic is  
off approximately 80%.  Fuel prices have doubled since Dec. 

 
2. Replaced 1 runway light. 

 
3. Fuel Farm:  

Have sump pumps for the av/gas and jet fuel tanks. Will have to  
get piping for each tank to be able to install sump pumps. 

 
4. FAA flew our RPZ approaches three weeks ago. We may be getting a  

Letter from FAA that we will have to remove trees on approach 21 and 
3 because height of trees are protruding into RPZ (Runway Protection Zone). 

 
5. Credit Card reader has been installed in terminal and is up and working. Will help long 

term. 
 

6. Future Projects:                                                                                                                                    
Pressure wash fuel tanks in fuel farm, paint tanks in fuel farm, Repair av/gas and jet fuel 
dispenser covers, repair water pump at hangars,  fix security light at fuel dispenser, 
remove trees in EPZ, repair edge drop off of one inch or more around runway 21 , 
runway 3 (fill dirt), repair electrical covers on airfield, fix headwalls to FAA specs, repair 
papi lights weld woods mower batwings, repair reils, repair rotating beacon, repair 
telephone line to fuel dispenser, repair hose reels at fuel dispenser, etc.       



 
 

 

Facility Services 
Louis Boone 
 
The following services were handled by the Facility Services Department: 

1. Edge up around the walkway around the county buildings and DSS. 

2. Pull Mediacom cables into different rooms in the County Manager’s Office. 

3. Moved furniture out in delinquent tax coordinator office, repair holes in walls, tear out 

old baseboard and replace with new, painted the office. 

4. Mowed grass around county buildings.   

5. Cleaned out drain line at the Library. 

6. Moved surplus materials to the Landfill. 

7. Put faucet on in the bathroom at the Health Dept.  

8. Installed faucet in bathroom at the County Manager building. 

9. Installed flush valve on commode in the Ladies’ Bathroom. 

10. Installed new bathroom door knob in bathroom in the Health Dept. 

11. Installed light bulbs, receptacles, light switches, ballasts, flush valves, commode seats, 

commode handles, door knobs, water faucets, light fixture, etc.  

12. Sweep, mop, empty trash, wash windows, vacuum floors, clean and disinfect offices 

throughout county buildings. 

 
MTW Health District 
Wes Gray 
 
(Sends COVID-19 updates throughout the month) 
 
Surplus Report 
Renee’ Collier 

  



 
 

 

DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total (by 
Gender)

Total 
Incacerations

60 49 31 30 44 44 48 40 0 0 0 0 346 346
Male 41 37 19 19 35 32 35 24 242
Female 7 1 9 7 5 9 10 15 63
Male 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 8 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 15
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 3 3 4 4 3 3 1 24 24
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY21-22

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

US PRISON TRANSPORT 

305

2

0

0

0

0

15

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

SURRY

SMCP

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Total Incarcerations  in FY
(includes all Counties)

95%

0%0%0%0%0%5%0%0%

Incarcerations by County (Total FY21-22)

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

SURRY

US PRISON TRANSPORT



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

WC Dispatched 129 165 154 172 149 160 155 112 1196
WC Transported 90 122 109 120 102 113 115 78 849
WC Refusals 39 43 45 52 47 47 40 34 347

Transport Washington
Hospital to Hospitals 1 1 2 3 2 0 4 4 17
SNF to Doctors 68 71 75 87 95 84 73 88 641
Hospital Discharges 15 19 10 7 5 12 6 10 84
EMS Back Up 2 8 11 3 5 6 4 1 40

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

TC Dispatched 62 65 56 53 48 44 44 39 411
TC Transported 43 48 42 38 35 33 34 22 295
TC Refusals 19 17 14 15 13 11 10 17 116

Mutual Aid Hyde
HC Dispatched 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 0 5
HC Transported 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 0 5
HC Refusals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)
FY21-22

Washington County

Tyrrell County

37%

26%

11%

13%

9%
4%0%0%0%

EMS Dispatches for FY21-22
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $3,851.00 11,595.00$        2,952.50$   2,726.40$   1,225.00$   925.00$       2,115.00$   4,280.00$   $29,669.90
Zoning 75.00$      75.00$         175.00$       75.00$         25.00$         25.00$         150.00$       $600.00

Reinspect 100.00$    -$             325.00$       375.00$       425.00$       75.00$         275.00$       300.00$       $1,875.00
SWUF $125.00 -$             -$             275.00$       275.00$       $675.00

HO Recovery 
Fee $10.00 -$             10.00$         $20.00

Total $4,161.00 $11,670.00 $3,462.50 $3,176.40 $1,650.00 $1,025.00 $2,690.00 $5,005.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $32,839.90

PLANNING AND ZONING
FY21-22

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$2,000.00

$4,000.00

$6,000.00

$8,000.00

$10,000.00

$12,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY21-22) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

90%

2%
6% 2%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building Zoning
Reinspect SWUF
HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
PARTICIPANT DATA 382 572 489 608 0 0 0 440 0 0 0 0 2491
Unduplicated Attendees 34 68 65 47 50 264
New Particpants 2 5 1 8
Center-Sponsored Events 100 212 255 109 676
Special Events 15 212 25 82 25 359
Caregiver's Support Group 5 4 4 4 17
Exercise Room 24 50 30 54 24 182
Dance Fitness 10 9 19
Yoga 32 20 10 32 32 126
Chair Exercise 90 114 54 54 57 369
Beginner's Line Dance 40 36 35 30 35 176
Aerobics With Sandra Taylor 0
Crafts With Sandra Lee 30 27 18 20 24 119
Craft Room 40 36 30 30 136
Drop-in Activities 40 40
Art Class 0
Computer Wi-fi 0

YTD Total
MEAL DATA 1218 1399 1391 1466 1085 817 920 975 0 0 0 0 9271
Congregate Meals Served 294 401 402 502 157 99 138 152 2145
Home-Delivered Meals Served 924 998 989 964 928 718 782 823 7126
Congregate Meals-Pick-Ups 179 272 252 323 334 247 248 274

YTD Total
CONTRIBUTION DATA 105.00$  87.00$    147.00$   150.00$  -$         -$      -$         -$         -$  -$  -$  -$  489.00$      
Congregate Meals -$            
Home-Delivered Meals -$            
Activity Fees 80.00$    70.00$     115.00$    90.00$     355.00$      
Donations 25.00$    17.00$     32.00$      60.00$     134.00$      

SENIOR CENTER
FY21-22

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

Meals Served (FY21-22)

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

30%

16%

1%8%1%
6%

17%

8%

0%
5%

6% 2%0%0%

Senior Center Activities (FY21-22) Center-Sponsored Events

Special Events

Caregiver's Support Group

Exercise Room

Dance Fitness

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Beginner's Line Dance

Aerobics With Sandra Taylor

Crafts With Sandra Lee

Craft Room

Drop-in Activities

Art Class

Computer Wi-fi



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE YTD 
TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 818 854 1051 898 988 1121 928 892 908 0 0 0 8458
Law Enforcement 655 640 820 683 780 880 703 705 728 6594

Animal Control 54 64 53 59 159 64 46 66 41 606
EMS 109 150 178 156 49 177 179 121 139 1258

Reported Incidents 85 38 48 42 48 55 58 35 57 466
Total Arrests 23 5 17 8 10 18 14 11 20 126

Misdemeanor Arrests 3 1 8 6 8 11 8 8 7 60
Felony Arrests 20 4 9 2 2 7 6 3 13 66

Total Papers Served 24 37 48 37 43 50 32 35 57 363
Criminal Papers Served 6 2 2 5 8 5 0 15 43

Civil Papers Served 24 31 46 35 38 42 27 35 42 320
Total Papers Outstanding 32 9 3 15 3 14 12 15 46 149
Criminal Papers Outstanding 3 0 2 1 1 1 4 12

Civil Papers Outstanding 32 6 3 13 2 13 12 14 22 117
Gun Permits Issued 19 16 18 26 15 16 15 52 177
Conceals Pending 7 20 26 38 0 12 103

Concealed Permits Issued 36 16 21 8 20 15 46 35 28 225

SHERRIFF
FY21-22

78%

7%

15%

Dispatched Calls (FY21-22)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE

Gun Permits (FY21-22)

Conceals Pending Concealed Permits Issued

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

YTD TOTALS

466

60 66
43

320

12

117

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY21-22)

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                    
Current Year Tax 2,195,228.45$  940,454.78$      859,173.92$      220,137.75$  319,977.93$  1,607,792.25$  569,027.17$      152,638.26$  
Current Yr Discount (43,716.55)$      (13,700.49)$      (5,844.70)$        -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               
Current Year Penalty 925.05$             1,865.96$          305.16$             371.79$         332.08$         1,544.52$          278.18$             1,277.39$      
Current Year Interest (6.12)$                6.12$                 -$                   178.95$         -$               6.05$                 2,745.57$          4,446.69$      
Watershed Tax Current 
Yr 25,738.43$        10,972.38$        10,180.54$        2,471.93$      3,646.45$      18,834.89$        6,870.42$          1,822.42$      
Watershed Discount (515.49)$            (159.61)$            (69.40)$              -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               
Watershed Penalty 11.08$               22.16$               3.37$                 1.12$             3.96$             18.42$               3.93$                 15.22$           
Watershed Interest -$                   -$                   -$                   2.13$             -$               -$                   31.19$               49.82$           
Prior Year Tax 74,965.22$        19,860.44$        39,510.04$        26,220.27$    34,340.45$    27,594.45$        16,645.88$        28,913.80$    
Prior Year Penalty 75.34$               54.53$               66.32$               42.48$           100.26$         43.48$               44.18$               138.96$         
Prior Year Interest 8,417.44$          2,882.20$          8,571.05$          6,150.77$      6,105.60$      4,966.97$          3,780.45$          6,811.14$      
Prior Year Watershed 758.62$             168.17$             273.25$             245.68$         284.16$         337.30$             195.48$             213.91$         
Prior Year WS Penalty 0.89$                 0.76$                 0.67$                 0.97$             0.49$             0.14$                 0.55$                 1.33$             
Prior Year WS Interest 558.84$             236.60$             390.64$             242.68$         286.13$         406.99$             188.10$             245.97$         
Bad Checks -$                   (122.76)$            (1,428.05)$        1,167.95$      -$               -$                   (4.08)$                -$               
Prepayments 1,684.51$          2,986.19$          2,988.64$          5,178.70$      2,225.01$      3,715.26$          3,528.20$          5,853.34$      

TOTAL 2,264,125.71$  965,527.43$     914,121.45$     262,413.17$  367,302.52$  1,665,260.72$  603,335.22$     202,428.25$  -$               -$               -$  -$  -$                                    

Initiated 10 10 32 16                   14 16
Amount 5,994.72$          7,438.51$          37,584.03$    9,785.57$      24,738.43$        11,093.59$        
Satisfied/Cancelled 2 22 14                   11 5
Amount 3,289.05$          59,269.06$    11,176.11$    16,883.37$        8,901.77$          

*

83,890.99$        72,823.51$        62,915.41 $73,379.97 69,762.77 73,853.59 436,626.24$                       

 -$                                    
Billed Current Yr 1,175,700.00$  1,175,700.00$                    
Collected Current Yr 372,776.94$      137,763.88$      67,315.62$        52,698.61$    56,421.75$    170,600.81$      88,153.86$        45,522.40$    991,253.87$                       
Bad Checks -$                   (300.00)$            (575.00)$            300.00$         -$               -$                   (95.92)$              -$               (670.92)$                             

TOTAL 1,548,476.94$  137,463.88$      66,740.62$        52,998.61$    56,421.75$    170,600.81$      88,057.94$        45,522.40$    2,166,282.95$                    

Billed Current Yr -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$                                    
Collected Current Yr -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$                                    
Prior Yrs Collected -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$                                    

Collected Current Yr 8,171.27$          14,087.13$        21,150.43$    8,369.75$      57,646.56$        31,453.76$        2,868.71$      143,747.61$                       

DMV -$                                    

Creswell Levy 6,909.47$          7,197.76$          3,113.94$      2,308.21$      33,606.90$        6,771.98$          172.28$         60,080.54$                         

TOTAL -$                   6,909.47$          7,197.76$          3,113.94$      2,308.21$      33,606.90$        6,771.98$          172.28$         -$               -$               -$  -$  60,080.54$                         

3,812,602.65$  1,201,963.04$  1,074,970.47$  339,676.15$  497,317.64$  2,000,494.96$  799,381.67$     324,845.23$  -$               -$               -$  -$  10,051,251.81$                  

Tax and Tag 
Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX
FY21-22

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Drainage Fees -    

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax Fees

Current Year Tax Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in 
million gallons)

76.56 7432 8508 6369 6257 6428 8930 7660 51,661

Water Billed  FY 20-21 (in 
million gallons)

9.222 8302 8483 7564 7256 6785 7921 6811 53,131

Base Charges 64,536$      64,475$    64,548$    64,656$    64,668$  64,716$  64,920$  65,088$    517,607$        
Consumption Charges 47,983$      44,915$    57,018$    33,800$    32,188$  33,943$  62,790$  48,529$    361,166$        
Reconnecton Charges 1,365$        2,030$      1,960$      1,820$      1,295$    840$        1,295$    1,820$      12,425$          

 Number of Abatements 11 12 9 16 3 7 12 19 89                    

  Dollar Amount of 
Abatements 

3,224.00$   2,431$      1,352$      1,820$      358$        722$        923$        2,990$      13,820.00$    

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

14.9 12.9 12.3 11.9 12 12 13 12 100.900

Number of Customers 2624 2627 2624 2629 2629 2631 2639 2646 21,049
New taps 4 1 2 0 0 1 0 8

Limbs, Brush & Leaves 76.97 69.61 71.35 55.46 53.63 64.74 35.17 44.71 471.64
Inert Debris 29.68 24.93 7.14 142.79 19.73 0 0.22 0.33 224.82
Scrap Metal 0.54 0.35 0 1.42 0.29 0.95 0.87 0.58 5.00
C&D 68.47 132.55 71.56 79.63 32.02 114.66 39.82 96.8 635.51
Tires 3.73 5.11 3.86 3.72 2.08 1.20 10.86 3.88 34.44
Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$    4,844.65$  4,844.65$  4,844.65$  $4,844.65 $4,844.65 $4,844.65 4,844.65$   38,757.20$            

0

WATER AND SOLID WASTE
FY21-22

LANDFILL(in tons)

34%

17%
0%

46%

3%

Landfill Collections (in tons) (FY21-22)

Limbs, Brush & Leaves

Inert Debris

Scrap Metal

C&D

Tires

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 20-21 (in million gallons)









 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   11 
   
       DATE:     April 4, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
Mr. Potter would like to have the following Closed Sessions pursuant to NCGS§143-
318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 
 



DRAFT 

                       
 
 

March 7, 2022 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, 
March 7, 2022 at 6:00 PM in person and by using ZOOM—virtual meeting software (due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic) for Facebook Live Streaming in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams 
Street, Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes and Carol V. Phelps, 
William R. “Bill” Sexton, Jr. and Julius Walker, Jr. were present in the room.  Also present were 
County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and County 
Finance Officer Missy Dixon.  
 

Chair Johnson called the meeting to order.  Commissioner Keyes gave the invocation and 
Commissioner Phelps lead the Pledge of Allegiance.                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

 
ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  Ms. Bennett mentioned there were two items in front of 

them to be added to the agenda:  BT #2022-070 regarding funds for the EM Building and a letter 
of support of Trillium  re: Proposed Child and Families Specialty Plan. 

 
 CONSENT AGENDA:  

Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, 
to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 

 
a) Approval of Minutes for February 7, 2022 Regular Meeting & Closed Session Minutes for 

January 3, 2022 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
c) Resolution 2022-006 Authorizing the Increase in the Federal Procurement Policy  

Micro-Purchase Threshold 
d) Personnel Policy Amendment:  Holiday Pay Policy 

    
Commissioner Walker made the motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  

Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Walker and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

PUBLIC FORUM: None. 
 

EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER: Chair Johnson read the nomination of the Employee 
of the Quarter, Ms. Sharon Pray, Housekeeper in Facilities.  Ms. Bennett read the Certificate of 
Recognition and stated that Ms. Pray will be presented the certificate at the Department Head 
Meeting this Wednesday, March 9, 2022 and she will also receive a check for $50. 
 
 PUBLIC HEARING:  SALE OF VETERAN’S FIELD:    
 
 Commissioner Keyes made a motion to open the public hearing for the Sale of Veteran’s 
Field. Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner 



DRAFT 

Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Walker and 
Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 Mr. Potter gave some background information regarding the sale of Veteran’s Field. 
 

Pursuant to Resolution 2022-003 adopted by the Board at its 2/7/22 meeting, staff published a 
notice of the initial offer made by Pocosin Innovative Charter to purchase the 9.4+/- acre parcel of 
county owned property located at 508 North First St. in Creswell more commonly known as Veteran’s 
Field property for $48,264.34. 
 

No upset bids were received.  Pocosin Innovative Charter would like to proceed with purchasing 
the property. 
 

Pursuant to the approved potential terms of sale, and the previously advertised notice of upset 
bids, the Board reserved the right to hold a public hearing to receive information and comments from the 
prospective purchaser and/or general public about the intended use of the property by PICS before 
deciding whether to approve the sale. 
 

Staff Recommendation:  The Board should discuss the information presented before deciding to: 
 

1. Accept the initial bid and approve the sale of the property to PICS by approving Resolution 
2022-007 (subject to the terms of sale which include a restrictive covenant to use the property for 
recreational purposes, a right of first refusal reserved for the County in the event of future sale of 
the property by PICS, and a non-discrimination clause.) 
 

2. Continue the public hearing to a later meeting before taking further action. 
 

3. Reject the initial offer and bid at this time. 
 

 Commissioner Sexton made a motion to close the public hearing.  Commissioner Walker 
seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner 
Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Walker and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 RESOLUTION 2022-007 SALE OF VETERAN’S FIELD:  Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA spoke to 
the Board regarding the resolution below for the sale of Veteran’s Field. 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
  
 Commissioner Phelps made the motion to approve Resolution 2022-007 Sale of Veteran’s 
Field.   Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  



DRAFT 

Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner 
Walker and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 MARTIN COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE PRESENTATION:  Ms. Rebecca Harned, 
Martin County Chamber of Commerce Director, gave the following presentation while on ZOOM. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 Ms. Harned asked the Commissioners for support and to join the Chamber.    
 
 Commissioner Sexton asked what other counties the Martin County Chamber serves.  Ms. 
Harned stated that right now just Martin County; however, they have members from Pitt, Beaufort, and 
Bertie County.  Commissioner Walker said he noticed that their fees are based on the number of 
employees of a business.  Ms. Harned said for a non-profit they will adjust the fees as necessary.  Also, 
Commissioner Walker said he heard her ask for the Commissioners to join.  Ms. Harned said she did and 
the cost is $100 for one year.   Ms. Keyes said any time the Board can help enhance our community she 



DRAFT 

is all for that and would like to be a member herself.  Ms. Harned said she will send out applications to 
the Commissioners and also that she can be reached at 252-792-4131. 
 
 WASHINGTON COUNTY SCHOOLS (WCS) DISCUSSION:   Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
called on Ms. Linda Carr, WCS Superintendent.  Dr. Carr introduced Washington County Board of 
Education member Ms. Lois Clark and Mr. Carlos Riddick.  Dr. Carr stated she was at the meeting 
tonight to ask for the Board of Commissioners’ approval to apply for a no match grant to bring $50M to 
the County for our schools. 
 
 Mr. Potter introduced Mr. Bob Jessup, the County’s Bond Counsel and also mentioned that two 
people from SFLA Architects were in attendance to make the following presentation to the 
Commissioners. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

Mr. Potter said he didn’t think the County could do a 40 year term, not even sure if the 
County could do a 30 year term. Mr. Potter said that Mr. Bob Jessup can discuss that more. He 
feels the LGC would rather have a 20-ish year term. 
 

Commissioner Phelps said he supports the K-12 school and he is not insisting that it go 
Creswell. He is not comfortable with spending $562,000 to tear Pines Elementary School (PES) 
down, and it will not be centrally located if it’s put back where the current school is. 
Commissioner Phelps told of his background and his issue with buying Hwy 64 frontage. That is 
prime acreage for economic development that would bring in tax money for the County.  
Commissioner Phelps said he feels that time was wasted when it should have been used to look 
for another piece of land. Dr. Carr said there is a cost savings for already having some facilities 
there at PES (water, sewer, utilities). Commissioner Phelps said that putting it on Hwy 64/45 is 
not the place for it. Dr. Carr said we all have to agree before WCS turns in the application.  Dr. 
Carr said she sees the chance to get a $50M grant with no match.  Dr. Carr stated the BoE is only 
asking for the Commissioners’ approval for turning in the application on that site and all that has 
been done thus far.  
 

Mr. Potter said one of the biggest challenges has been finding a site with infrastructure. A 
site without infrastructure could result in a tax increase. A funding agreement will have to be 
reached with both Boards and operating costs reduced that the County is required to spend on 
schools. Mr. Potter hopes that Phase I can be done without a tax increase. There may be a few 
other sites with infrastructure such as Union Middle School and a site close to the OBX 
Speedway.  Mr. Potter said that County staff with the help of our Management Fellow used GIS 
technology to find the center of our County and it’s in between the Union Middle School site and 
the PES site.  
 

Dr. Carr said this process would not displace any child and their learning while this 
process is taking place. 
 

Commissioner Keyes said she understands the importance of having the infrastructure 
already in place such as a lift station and a gas line.  
 

Commissioner Phelps said the Creswell site has sewer and county water and electrical and 
probably a gas line. SFLA said there was water quality issues that would need to be addressed 
and Dr. Carr said they had to put filters on everything to be able to use the water. Commissioner 
Phelps said that was Town water not County water. 
 

Chair Johnson said the timing and the need for this school is now.  There has been no 
other time that the funds have been available for what we have needed. For this situation and this 
time, she feels the Board will be doing our citizens a big disservice if we do not apply for this 
grant. 

 
Mr. Potter said due to the $50M scale of the financial opportunity presented by the Needs 

Based Public Grant this year, and due to its quickly approaching deadline of 3/15/22, staff 
recommends the Board go ahead and authorize the execution of the grant application by the 
Board Chair to be based on the general scope and concepts of construction presented by the 
School System and SFLA, subject to the understanding and condition that subsequent approval 
by the Board as to the final scope of construction and estimated cost along with the approval of a 
formal funding agreement to be arranged between the County and the Washington County 



DRAFT 

School System related to the overall financing terms of the project shall be required before any 
bids for construction are publicly let. 

 
Commissioner Walker made a motion to authorize the execution of the grant 

application by the Board Chair to be based on the general scope and concepts of 
construction presented by the Washington County School System and SFLA, subject to the 
understanding and condition that subsequent approval by the Board as to the final scope of 
construction and estimated cost along with the approval of a formal funding agreement to 
be arranged between the County and the Washington County School System related to the 
overall financing terms of the project that shall be required before any bids for 
construction are publicly let.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded 
with the roll call:  Commissioner Sexton yea; Commissioner Phelps, aye—but with 
objections noted; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Walker, yea; and 
Commissioner Johnson, yea. Motion carried unanimously.  

 
Mr. Potter stated he would like to give Mr. Bob Jessup a chance to speak to the Board to 

help us find a way to do this project without raising taxes.   The construction side drives the 
funding side. Mr. Jessup went over the following handout.  LGC wants you to have your largest 
payments in the earlier years.  

 



DRAFT 

 
FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 

amendments that were in the Commissioners’ package.  
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
  
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
Commissioner Sexton made a motion to approve the budget transfers/amendments 

as presented.  Commissioner Walker seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll 



DRAFT 

call:  Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Walker and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   
  
 Ms. Bennett, Clerk to the Board stated that she had a bid opening at 5:00 PM today for the 
Commerce Center upset bid.  A new upset bid was received for the Commerce Building from Tidal Waves 
Industrial Laundry at $500,000. The next bid opening will be March 28 and the new upset bid will have to 
be $525,050 or higher 
 
 Commissioner Phelps thanked the Board and staff for the supporting the sale of the Veteran’s Field 
to PICS. 
 
 Mr. Potter said that Mr. Richard Livingston, LFNC Fellow, has been working on the draft Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) plan and working with the Department Heads.  It will be discussed at the 
Department Head meeting this week. There are some things that the County needs to try to accomplish this 
year.  We have some contingency funds from deferred maintenance projects.  With the Board’s consent, 
these are some of the things that need to be done:  a new roof on the Dream Care Providers building ($17K 
quote rec’d) and reconnecting the Courthouse generator to all of the Courthouse and also some extra 
electrical work ($20 – $30K) to include all the Courthouse.  We would also like to update the County’s 
phone system (to the VOIP system).  DSS upgraded theirs to this and they were reimbursed partially by 
the State.  DSS has been the guinea pig.  The cost would be approximately $30K.  Mr. Potter spoke about 
a 2nd LFNC FELLOW:  We applied for and received approval once again along with a limited number of 
counties to participate in the LFNC Fellow program next year.  This is the same program which brought 
Mr. Livingston to us this past year.  I plan to continue recommending funding another Fellow next fiscal 
year even if we retain Mr. Livingston due to the relatively low cost and high reward we stand to gain from 
this program.  For around $20K a year we will receive a fully educated and motivated young professional 
for a full year to assist us to fill in gaps and missing capacity where we most need help to achieve our 
internal and external service goals and projects.  With all the increased spending due to the many capital 
projects we have coming toward us this year, I believe funding this program once again is well worth the 
continued cost.  I am happy to answer any questions or concerns you may have about repeating this 
program for a second year while also potentially retaining Mr. Livingston as an actual FTE.  Mr. Potter 
said he needs to let UNC know by the end of this week if we will be participating in their program. 
 
 Mr. Potter also noted that vehicle costs have increased for a total of $6K for Sheriff’s cars.  
 
 Mr. Potter said he’s been working with the Board of Elections and their move to the Roper Annex 
building.  He feels that the County has arrived at a great beneficial decision for Elections and BCCC.  We 
would have staff consistently in that building. 
 
 Mr. Potter said he talked with Mr. Wes Gray, MTW Director, today regarding masking.  MTW is 
going to voluntary masking.  Mr. Potter asked the Board how they want staff to look at masking for the 
County offices.  Do they want to look at making masking voluntary or do something different?  
Commissioner Keyes said the County should follow guidance from the MTW Director.  Commissioner 
Sexton said he was ok with volunteer masking. Commissioner Walker said he was ok with volunteer 
masking.  Mr. Potter said his recommendation is to modify our policy for voluntary masking with 
guidance from the MTW Director. The Board said they were confident in Mr. Potter’s ability to modify 
the policy. 



DRAFT 

 
 LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR TRILLIUM RE:  PROPOSED CHILD AND FAMILIES 
SPECIALTY PLAN: Please see the letter below.  Chair Johnson noted that Trillium is asking counties that 
they serve to support the Trillium Health Resources Tailored Plan to continue to manage all healthcare for 
children, young adults, and their family members with Medicaid who are involved in the foster care 
system. 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve supporting the Trillium letter 
presented above.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll 
call:  Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Walker and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 



DRAFT 

 
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 
§143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel).  
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Walker, yea and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

At 8:15 PM with no further business to discuss, Commissioner Phelps made a motion 
to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Walker seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with 
the roll call:  Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, 
yea; Commissioner Walker, yea and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
              Tracey A. Johnson                 Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 

             Chair              Clerk to the Board 
 
 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda April 4, 2022
	4-4-2022 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Item 1 b) Tax Refunds  & Releases
	Item 1 c) Proclamation 2022-009 National County Gov Month April 2022
	Item 1 d) RESO 2022-010 Terminating Reintroduction of the Red Wolf
	Item 1 e) RESO 2022-011 Requesting the NDDOC NCWORKS retain boundaries
	Item 1 f) RESO 2022-012 AUTHORIZING SALE OF REAL PROPERTY, SR 1126 SR 1164,
	Item 1 g) Washington County - 2022 Contract and Eng Letter
	4-4-2022 Item 2 (public forum)
	4-4-2022 Item 3 Public Hearing Solar Ordinance Amendment
	Item 3 BOCC MEMO re Resolution 2022-013 amending solar zoning ordinance for 20220404 mtg w attachments
	BOCC MEMO re Resolution 2022-013 amending solar zoning ordinance for 20220404 mtg
	Resolution 2022-0013  Amending Solar Ordinance

	4-4-2022 Item 4 Trillium's Annual Report
	Item 4 Trillium 2021 Annual Report Washington County
	Slide Number 1
	TRILLIUM UPDATE
	Who We Are - Numbers
	Three Regions
	Medicaid Transformation- Standard Plans
	Medicaid Transformation Tailored Plan:
	Behavioral Health I/DD Tailored Plan Regions
	Medicaid Transformation Tailored Plan Continued
	Organizational Changes
	Organizational changes continued:
	Project Updates
	Consumers served in Washington County
	Slide Number 13

	4-4-2022 Item 5 TTA State of the Union
	4-4-2022 Item 6 SAA Transportation Needs
	4-4-2022 Item 7 NCDOT Update
	4-4-2022 Item 8 Boards & Committees
	4-4-2022 Item 9 Finance Officer's Report
	Item 9 budget transfers-amendments (3)
	Item 9 3-28-2022 Financial Report
	4-4-2022 Item 10 Other Items
	Item 10 Reports for 4-4-22 BoC Meeting
	Stat Report Cover Sheet
	4-4-2022 Item 11 Closed Session
	Item 10 FY21-22  Statistic Reports
	Detention
	EMS
	Planning & Zoning
	Senior Center
	Sheriff's Office
	 Tax
	Utilities

	Item 10 Register of Deeds Rollup Summary
	Item 1 a) 3-7-2022 minutes

